
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

AGENDA 

For the Council Meeting to be Held 
In the Council Chambers,  

Saanich Municipal Hall, 770 Vernon Avenue 
MONDAY, APRIL 18, 2016 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

A. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
1. Council Meeting held April 11, 2016 
2. Special Committee of the Whole – Financial Plan held April 12, 2016 

 
B. PUBLIC INPUT (ON BUSINESS ITEMS C & D) 

 
C. RESOLUTIONS FOR ADOPTION 

 
1. UNIVERSITY OF VICTORIA CONFINED SPACE RESCUE SERVICE AGREEMENT 

Report of the Fire Chief dated April 1, 2016 recommending that Council authorize the 
renewal of the Confined Space Rescue Service Agreement between the District of 
Saanich and District of Oak Bay with the University of Victoria for the joint provision of 
confined space rescue services to the University of Victoria for the period September 1, 
2016 to August 31, 2021. 

 
2. REGIONAL TOWER CRANE RESCUE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Report of the Fire Chief dated April 1, 2016 recommending that Council authorize the 
renewal of the Tower Crane Rescue Services Agreement between the District of Saanich 
and City of Victoria with the municipalities of Colwood, Esquimalt, Oak Bay, Sidney and 
View Royal for the period May 1, 2016 to April 30, 2021.  

 
3. VICTORIA REGIONAL TRANSIT COMMISSION – REQUEST FOR FUEL TAX 

INCREASE 
Letter from the Victoria Regional Transit Commission dated March 10, 2016 that Council 
endorse the Transit Commission’s request to increase the dedicated fuel tax applied in the 
region under the BC Transit Act by two cents per litre to support transit system 
development in the Capital Region. 

 
D. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM COMMITTEES 

 
1. ARTS, CULTURE AND HERITAGE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – SAANICH ARTS, 

CULTURE AND HERITAGE AWARDS. 
Report of the Senior Manager of Recreation dated April 12, 2016 recommending that 
Council approve the proposed Arts, Culture and Heritage Awards Program. 
 
 

AGENDA 
For the Committee of the Whole Meeting 

** IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING** 
The Council Meeting in the Council Chambers 

  

 
1.  CONSIDERATION OF ALLOWING MINIATURE GOATS ON URBAN RESIDENTIAL LOTS 

Report of the Director of Planning dated April 7, 2016 recommending that Council proceed with 
Option 3 (community engagement process and pilot program) as outlined in the Report. 

OrrS
Text Box
pg. 15

OrrS
Text Box
pg. 30

OrrS
Text Box
pg. 32

OrrS
Text Box
pg. 36

OrrS
Text Box
pg. 3



COUNCIL/COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETINGS                    APRIL 18, 2016 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 

2. CONSIDERATION OF ZONING AMENDMENT TO PERMIT POCKET FARM MARKETS 
Report of the Director of Planning dated April 12, 2016 recommending that Council amend Zoning 
Bylaw 8200 to include a new definition of “Pocket Farm Market”; and that Section 5.23 be 
amended to include “Pocket Farm Market Sales”. 

 
 

 
 

“IN CAMERA” COUNCIL MEETING IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWS6 

OrrS
Text Box
pg. 52



3

OrrS
Text Box
CMC1

OrrS
Typewritten Text

OrrS
Typewritten Text



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15

OrrS
Text Box
CMC2



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



iôoo zC 71t2t Cfrc-fJ- A1.t/)é

AØayor
.CounciI lors

Victoria Regional Administrator

Transit Commission
Con, 5oc.

Councillor Susan Brice —

Chair
District of Saanich

Mayor Richard Atwell March 10, 2016
District of Saanich

Mayor Alice Finall
District of North Saanich

Re: Request to amend Motor Fuel Tax Act to Fund Transit Investments
Mayor Lisa Helps
City of Victoria

Dear Colleagues
Mayor Barb Desjardins
Township of Esquimalt Growth in transit service is a priority of the region’s economic development and
Mayor Carol Hamilton transportation strategies. Recent consultation has also confirmed strong support
City of Cotwood from the public in moving forward with improvements to transit service.
Councillor Marianne Alto
City of Victoria The Commission recently approved a budget for 201 6/17 that maintains the existing

level of transit service in the region without an increase in property tax. This was
possible due to the implementation of a new fare structure, administrative savings
and operational efficiencies.

While the Commission will continue to use all funding levers available to maintain
the existing level of service, moving forward with the desired level of expansion will
require additional funding beyond what can be achieved from property tax and fares.
In addition to operating costs, up to $125M in capital expenditure is necessary over
the next five years to upgrade transit exchanges, fleet, and operating centers.
Without significant new funding, future transit service expansion will remain limited.

As you may be aware, the BC Transit Act allows for the Commission to seek funding
from property tax, passenger and ancillary revenue, and a motor fuel tax. The
Victoria Regional Transit System presently receives 3.5 cents per litre tax on fuel
sold in the service area. This tax generates approximately $11.7M annually to help
cover the local share of transit operating and capital expenses. A 1.0 cent increase
in fuel tax generates approximately $3.4M annually.

In response to the pressure to fund the necessary investments in transit and support
service expansion, the Commission’s request before the Government of BC is to

________________________

amend the Motor Fuel Tax Act to increase the dedicated fuel tax applied in the
region under the BC Transit Act by 2.0 cents per litre. For reference, generating this
same value of funding through property taxes instead of the fuel tax would require a

APR 1 1 2016 22% increase in the transit levy.

LEGISLATIVE DIVISION The request was made to the Minister of Transportation and Infrastructure in 2013,
PLSTRICT OF SAANICIL following a full consultation with the community. At that time, the increase in fuel tax

was supported by the Board of the Capital Regional District, the Greater Victoria

Chamber of Commerce and many other organizations throughout the region.

520 Gorge Road East At a recent meeting with the Minister of Transportation and Infrastructure, the
Commission was informed that our request has been forwarded to the Minister of

Fax 250.995.5689 Finance for consideration in this year’s budget. While it is not approved at this time,

• .12

c330



the concept continues to receive support at the provincial level. The Minister asked

the Commission to confirm that broad support for this approach remains at the local

and regional level to support further deliberation.

While no tax is welcomed, public surveys and funding studies have shown that

increases to fuel tax are a preferred approach to funding transit systems rather than

relying solely on property taxes. The Commission is seeking your continued

commitment to this approach to fund increased transit services and associated

facilities through an additional fuel tax by your support of the following motion:

“Endorse the Victoria Regional Transit Commission’s request to increase

the dedicated fuel tax applied in the region under the BC Transit Act by two
cents per litre to support transit system development in the Capital Region”

If appropriate, we would be pleased to attend a meeting of your council/board to

discuss this issue in person. Thank you for your continued support to move transit

forward in the region.

Respectfully,

—Susan Brice, Chair
Victoria Regional Transit Commission

-,--7 1-

Mayor Richard Atwell, Member

Mayor Alice Finall, Member

Mayor Lisa Helps, Member

Mayor Barb Desjardins, Member

Mayor Carol Hamilton, Member

Ø1L

Jd4’7W’fl

Councillor Marianne Alto, Member

31



1L))DO 1QCAeaMOfl

Report
To:

From:

Date:

Subject:

The Corporation of the District of Saanich

Mayor and Council

Kelli-Ann Armstrong, Senior Manager - Recreation

April 12, 2016

Arts Culture and Heritage Awards Program

Ayri’I IcI1C&

,IayOr (,%4
ouncillors
Administrator
Corn. ASSOC.

Applicant

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to recommend Council approve the proposed Arts, Culture and
Heritage Awards program.

BACKGROUND

Since April 2012, the idea of establishing an Arts, Culture and Heritage Awards Program has been
discussed by the Arts, Culture and Heritage (ACH) Advisory Committee. In June 2012, a program
proposal was supported by the Advisory Committee and forwarded to Council for its endorsement.
Council supported the proposal, but asked the Advisory Committee to provide some additional
information.

The establishment of “an Arts, Culture and Heritage awards event” was listed in the 2013-2017
Strategic Plan. In March 2013, the Advisory Committee commenced work to develop a program
to recognize and celebrate the contributions to the arts, culture and heritage of Saanich.

At the May 2015 meeting, the Committee endorsed the Awards Program and recommended that
Council approve the Saanich Arts, Culture and Heritage Awards Program as attached.

DISCUSSION

The Arts, Culture and Heritage (ACH) Advisory Committee provided considerable input to the
proposed program. While the award categories and method of recognition evolved over time, the
overarching concept of the Awards Program, to recognize and celebrate contributions to the
cultural environment of Saanich, did not change.

The Award Program proposes that nominations will be received by the Arts, Culture and Heritage
Committee and establishes the following evaluation criteria:

• contributions to the achievement of Saanich strategic goals related to arts, culture and
heritage

• significance of contributions and their impact on the community

APR 132016
Pagelof2

LEGISLATiVE DIVISION
I-’ F ‘ A K It f’ Li

32



• leadership and/or service over a significant period of time (sustained effort) or level of
involvement (magnitude of effort) — that includes the period of time since the last Awards
were presented

Awards will be granted at least once per 4-year Council term, and will be presented by Mayor and
Council on behalf of the ACH Committee. Awards will normally be presented in conjunction with
an informal reception with Council, ACH Committee members, Awards recipients and their guests.

The budget for the annual Environmental Awards ranges between $1,500 and $2,000 each year
and it is anticipated that the budget for the Arts, Culture and Heritage Awards will not be more
than the amount allocated to the Environmental Awards. In 2016, the Awards program can be
supported by the Arts, Culture and Heritage Advisory Committee’s allocated annual funding.
However in subsequent years, a request for financial support will be submitted to Council during
the annual budget process.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council approve the proposed Arts, Culture and Heritage Awards Program.

Prepared by

_______________________________

KeIli-Ann Armstrong

Senior Manager - Recreation
KA/ka

Attachments (1)
cc: Brenda Weatherston, Community Arts Specialist

Carole Ireland, Manager, Cedar Hill Recreation Centre
Caroline Duncan, Archives Supervisor, Legislative Services

GAO COMMENTS:

I endorse the

Chief

Senior Manager - Recreation.

Page 2 of 233



arts, culture and heritage of Saanich

About the Awards
Arts, culture and heritage enrich and enhance our municipality. The Saanich Arts, Culture and Heritage
Awards recognize and celebrate contributions made to the cultural environment of Saanich, and are
sponsored by the Saanich Arts, Culture and Heritage Advisory Committee (ACH).

Eligibility
The District of Saanich is seeking nominations for individuals, organizations and businesses that have
made outstanding contributions to community arts, culture and heritage.

Anyone living, working or participating in Saanich is eligible for recognition. While awards are not
limited to residents and organizations based in Saanich, they must be based in the Greater Victoria
region and their contributions must have outcomes that have made an impact on Saanich.

Current Saanich Arts, Culture and Heritage Committee members, staff, Mayor and Council are not
eligible to receive awards.

Award Categories
UNSUNG HERO: INDIVIDUAL AWARD

This award recognizes individuals who have made a significant contribution to arts, culture or heritage.
Through leadership and/or effort, the impact they have made to the cultural fabric of Saanich is
important, ground breaking and has come from a place of service to the community.

CULTURAL STEWARD: ORGANIZATION AWARD

This award recognizes organizations or groups of citizens that have been actively involved in promoting
and nurturing arts, culture or heritage efforts for several years. Through their efforts, they have
increased public awareness of arts, culture or heritage initiatives in Saanich. Their stewardship has
made a positive impact on our individual and community quality of life.

THE ART OF BUSINESS: SUPPORTER AWARD

This category recognizes businesses or individuals that have supported the sustainability of arts,
culture or heritage in our community. Those nominated should demonstrate excellence in raising
awareness and support for arts, culture or heritage activities and resources through financial, in-kind or
voluntary investment.

NEXT GEN: YOUTH AWARD

This award recognizes an individual or group of individuals under the age of 24 who have demonstrated
outstanding commitment to arts, culture or heritage in Saanich. Through volunteering, acting as a role
model or leader, or demonstrating exceptional accomplishment, they are making a difference in our
community now and for the future.

Recognizing positive contributions to the

34



INDIVIDUAL LIFETIME ACHIEVEMENT AWARD

At the ACH Committee’s discretion, a special Individual Lifetime Achievement Award may be
presented to acknowledge exemplary contributions by an individual in arts, culture or heritage.

Awards Criteria and Process
Nominations are received by the Arts, Culture and Heritage Committee and evaluated according to the
following criteria:

• contributions to the achievement of Saanich strategic goals related to arts, culture and heritage
• significance of contributions and their impact on the community
• leadership and/or service over a significant period of time (sustained effort) or level of

involvement (magnitude of effort) — that includes the period of time since the last Awards were
presented

Nominations will be collected by staff and a report will come to the ACH Committee for review and
award selection at a special ACH Committee Meeting for Awards.

A maximum number of three awards will be selected in each category. Awards will be only be granted
in each category when eligible applications are received.

Awards will be granted at least once per Municipal Council term.

Awards will be presented by Mayor and Council on behalf of the ACH Committee and will normally be
presented at least once each Council term in conjunction with an informal reception with Council, ACH
Committee members, Awards recipients and their guests.

Recipients will receive an award of recognition and their name and award will be publicized.

Nominations
Nominations can be made by completing an online or print-based ACH Awards Nomination Form.
A Call for Nominations will be posted using the Saanich website, social media, print and electronic
communications.

Individuals, organizations and businesses cannot nominate themselves for an award. However,
organizations, groups and businesses may nominate an individual involved within their organization for
an individual award.

Saanich Arts, Culture and Heritage Awards Program • Draft for Council Approval —April 12, 2016 2
35



36

OrrS
Text Box
CW#1



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



hiD A1Arv\41S/c:E7c2:d-S Page 1 of 2

.. .

ClerkSec - Comments Re Miniature Goats File 1130-20 Mayor
Councillors

From:

:.

i
To: <clerksec@saanich.ca> APR 13 2016 I
Date: 4/12/2016 7:08 PM
Subject: Comments Re Miniature Goats File 1130-20 PV1SI0N

Thank you for sending notice and the report on the issue of keeping miniature goats within the boundaries of

Saanich. As I will not be able to attend the council meeting on Monday, please accept the following comments

for the record.

In addition to concerns that were highlighted in the report regarding goats in Seattle and other areas and the

impacts they can have relative to eating ornamentals, and other destructive habits, and the fact that these are

farm animals living in an urban area, I have a few other concerns that don’t seem to be noted in the report.

The first is NOISE. We are one of the unfortunate in Saanich who live next to a neighbour who has chickens, a

supposedly quiet farm animal. Well I tell you they are not. When they begin their egg laying song and go on and

on and on for 45 minutes or so, it is extremely annoying. If this were a dog barking like that for 45 minutes, I

would have a legitimate by-law issue, but with something as equally annoying, there is no recourse. My home

office has a window on our neighbours backyard and it is impossible, in summer with windows open, to

concentrate on my work when this happens. Additionally, my wife and I frequently enjoy sitting on our front

porch in nicer weather and again this enjoyment is dampened when the birds are noisy. And we did not even

use our back patio once last summer, in part because of this issue.

I am concerned that the constant bleating of goats will lead to similar issues. I know various reports have said

that miniature goats are quiet, but similar things were said about chickens and this is definitely NOT the case.

A second concern is VERMIN. With our neighbours chicken coop and the feed and such we have frequently seen

rats running around the neighbours coop and there has been evidence of rats in our own backyard, and the

other day, a dead one on our front porch. I am concerned that a similar “ruralization” of city properties for

goats will lead to similar problems. Certainly if our neighbour added goats to his chickens, I would have some

very serious issues with both the noise and the potential increase vermin coming on to the property.

A third concern is DEGRADATION of PROPERTY VALUE. We live in a very nice location in the Gordon Head area

and I am 100% concerned that the additional noise and other issues from the neighbours chickens will have an

impact on our re-sale value. I would have a similar concern if there were goats next to me. My wife and I are at

an age where selling and retiring is soon to be a consideration and i for one would not want to buy a house next

to a chicken coop, a goat shed, or a “mini-farm”, in the case of someone with both chickens and goats. I am sure

others would be in that same boat and as such we may have concerns when we try to sell because of our

chicken issue. I realize Saanich historically been a rural municipality, but this is no longer the case in much of its

area, and I wish council would stop pretending it is in these areas.

If people want to raise chickens and goats on their properties, then they should consider moving to a rural area

and doing it there, not move into the city and then force the city into allowing them to do it there. Seems

similar to someone moving next to an airport and then asking if the airport could stop flying planes over their

house.

Given the above, I strongly urge council to NOT allow the keeping of goats on city lots. However, if in their

wisdom they do allow it, then it would be great if the process is amended so that if someone applies to keep

file:///C:/Users/Orrs/AppData/Local/Temp/XPgrpwise/57OD4796SaanichMun_Hall... 4/13/2016
48



Page 2 of 2

goats, ALL adjoining neighbours have to agree and approve before the application can be accepted. This is/was

not the case with the chicken by-law (we never had any direct consultation when our neighbour applied to get

chickens) and I think something like that can go a long way to keeping the peace, both literally and figuratively in

the neighbourhood.

Thanks for your consideration.

Mr. Christian J. Stewart, M.Sc.

Phone:
Cell / Text:
E-Mail:

file:IIIC :/Users/Orrs/AppData/Local/Temp/XPg rpwise/57OD4796Saanich Mu n_Hall... 4/13/2016
49



April 12, 2016

Dear Mayor Atwell and Council,

I take this opportunity to express my strong desire for you, as my elected representatives, to maintain

the current bylaws respecting goats as they are (i.e. recognized as farm animals and permitted in Rural

zones and on residential lots greater than 0.65 ha).

I have read the staff report, dated April 7, 2016, and ask that you consider the following points:

• it does not appear that the implications for adjacent landowners, such as the ability to enjoy

their yards and houses in relative peace and quiet, has been adequately considered. As it is

now, I have to put up with constant “clucking” of several chickens in my neighbour’s yard - they

cluck for between 30 - 45 minutes numerous times throughout the day. It is difficult to read a

book on my front or back porch or have a conversation with friends and family while this is in

progress. In the summer months, when my house windows are open, their noise can be heard

throughout my house. My husband has difficulty working in his home office, with its window

that faces the neighbour’s yard, due to the distracting noise. The thought of adding goat

whinnying to chicken clucking is maddening. If I lived in a rural area I would have a different

attitude but I live on a standard residential lot in the middle of a city of 200,000 residents, just a

few meters from each of my neighbours.

• Another implication not to be overlooked is the odour of farm animals, their housing, and their

waste and the impact on neighbouring residents. I don’t believe Saanich conducts any

inspections to see that proper standards are being met with currently permitted farm animals

within single family residential area so I expect that with goats we would remain in a situation

where the onus would be on affected neighbours to lodge complaints if unacceptable situations

arise with neighbouring farm animals. This is not a good way to maintain positive

neighbourhood relationships. If the municipality chooses to allow increasing types of farm

animals in the city limits, the municipality should conduct regular inspections to ensure the

permitted residents are managing their animals and the related housing/waste appropriately.

• If Saanich considers using similar policies to some of those noted in the staff report, it would

appear that any or all of my 4 neighbours could be permitted two goats (because they are social

animals and need company) and since they can produce multiple kids twice/year (given their

short gestation times) and people might be allowed to keep the kids for 3 months, that

realistically, I might actually have to contend with 5 or more goats per neighbour at any one

time or upwards 20 goats in surrounding yards; possibly in addition to 20 chickens, and several

pet dogs). Although it may be unlikely that each neighbour would choose this, if the bylaw is

changed there would be nothing that I could do if they all opted to. Perhaps there is a reason

why the current bylaw limits farm animals to rural areas and large lot residential. Let’s keep it

that way.

APR13 2U1 11
LEGISLATIVE DIVISION
DISTRICT OF SAANICH

50



• it certainly does not seem to me that the request for goats relates in any way to “access to safe

and nutritious food supply” - I don’t believe that those interested in having goats plan on eating

them (and given slaughter requirements, this is unlikely). It is noted that there are potential

health risks to un- or poorly-pasturized goat milk. It is also noted that reproduction is needed to

get milk and there may be a need to neuter male goats for other reasons. So having goats does

not seem to relate to the food supply aspect of the official community plan.

• providing information about goat maintenance is not an adequate means of ensuring that

proper practices are being undertaken by people who would choose to have goats and again,

neighbours are the ones who have to put up with potential issues such as waste, goats jumping

or damaging fences when they are free-ranging in their owner’s yards, etc.

• It seems that making incremental changes to bylaws, or changes based on limited requests, is

not good planning. First chickens, now potentially goats, next time someone may want turkeys

or geese, pigs, or sheep-maybe just one or two of each. Once the precedent of incremental

change based on limited requests has been set, how could Council turn down future requests

for additional small animals. Perhaps Council should consider such changes only once a

threshold of requests has been reached (reasonable number based on Saanich’s population

size).

• I believe that appropriate consultation with Saanich residents should be conducted before any

consideration of allowing any further backyard animals is undertaken by Council. I suggest a

resident survey.

• Lastly, in terms of needs within our municipality, I do not see an urgency in terms of considering

whether or not to allow more farm animals to be kept within the urban containment area.

Again, I suggest that Council should leave the bylaw as it is currently and let Saanich staff deal

with the priorities they already have on their work programs.

Sincerely,

Carolyn Stewart

2

51



/-ipv I/&
I 9)t.j ---c

<: IllO3Q

The Corporation of the District of Saanich

ayo
.€6uncu h—

Report
Applicant

To: Mayor and Council

From: Sharon Hvozdanski, Director of Planning

Date: April 12, 2016

Subject: Consideration of Zoning Bylaw Amendment to permit “Pocket Farm
Markets”
File: 2110-55

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to:
• Provide background on discussions to date regarding “Pocket Farm Markets”;
• Outline regulatory matters;
• Provide additional information as previously requested by Council; and
• Outline the revised bylaw amendment proposal to allow for “Pocket Farm Markets”.

BACKGROUND

The concept of “Pocket Farm Markets” supports a broad range of Official Community Plan
policies including: increased food security, improved economic development, reduced carbon
impact, building community spirit, and improved personal health and wellness. As well, interest
in locally grown, organic food, interest by young and old in growing food, and desire for
knowledge of how and where food is grown is increasing. Most importantly, “Pocket Farm
Markets” support local farmers to market their produce directly to Saanich and CRD residents.

Generally, the concept of “Pocket Farm Markets” is that growers would gather, once a week for
a specified time, and sell their produce directly to residents from a table or truck tailgate. As this
approach does not require a building or other infrastructure, the space used for the “Pocket
Farm Market” is not permanently impacted.

Council previously discussed this concept and asked staff to undertake additional work on the
matter. This report: provides a consolidated overview of the discussions to date; and outlines a
recommended approach to move forward on allowing for “Pocket Farm Markets” in Saanich.

REGULATIONS

Existing
The sale of farm produce grown on an agricultural parcel is permitted as “Accessory Produce
Sales” from a roadside farm stand in all of the Agricultural Zones except the A-5 (Rural,

________

Landscape Contractor) Zone. The A-3 (Farm Market) Zone specifically permits a retail business

APR!32016 I
LLEGISLATIVE DIVISION I

DTRICT OF SAAjcjJ
52



2110-55 -2- April 12, 2016

which sells a defined range of farm products. The Big Barn Market, the Red Barn Market, and
the Galey Farm Market are examples of well established “Farm Markets”.

The “Pocket Farm Market” concept is not a “Farm Market” as defined in the Saanich Zoning
Bylaw. Currently, a “Farm Market” requires A-3 Zoning, which by definition, provides for a wide
range of products to be sold, including imported products, generally located within a building,
and operates daily year round.

The concept of “Pocket Farm Markets” is that growers would gather, once a week for a specified
time, and sell their produce directly to residents from a table or truck tailgate. “Pocket Farm
Markets” are currently not a permitted use in Saanich.

Initial Zoning Amendment Proposal
There are a number of ways in which to consider the issue of providing for “Pocket Farm
Markets” within the Saanich context, including creating new zones, amending existing zones,
and/or creating special regulations.

Given that “Pocket Farm Markets” are temporary in nature, creating new zones or amending
existing zones is not considered to be an appropriate approach. To provide for this use in a way
that should be compatible with community expectations, the regulation for the sale of Christmas
trees was reviewed. In 1995, in response to concerns about Christmas tree sales taking place
within established parking lots, the Zoning Bylaw was amended to allow the sale of Christmas
trees between December 1 and December 26, in any calendar year, in a number of rural and
commercial zones.

The creation of a bylaw amendment in the same format and spirit, to permit “Pocket Farm
Markets”, as was done for Christmas trees, would appear to be an approach which is not overly
regulatory, and would achieve the objectives.

There are obvious differences between Christmas tree sales and a “Pocket Farm Market”
however, and the discussion below addresses a number of issues that are specific to the latter
land use.

Definition
A “Pocket Farm Market” is generally understood to be the sale of fresh, locally produced farm
produce such as fruits, vegetables, eggs, cut flowers, and plants. The sale would typically occur
once or twice a week only between set hours. For example, weekly on Saturday from 10:00 am
to 3:00 pm or the third Wednesday of every month from 4:00 pm to 8:00 pm. Generally, the
produce is displayed on portable tables and may be covered by a portable tent structure or from
a pick-up truck or van.

A definition of “Pocket Farm Market” is needed to differentiate it from the existing definition of
“Farm Market”, and to provide a common understanding of the term for the public, operators,
and the municipality.

Frequency and Hours
Typically, markets in the CRD run from May or June through to September or October, either
weekly or monthly, and last four to six hours. Restrictions on frequency and hours are
considered necessary to ensure that neighbourhood impacts are minimized while benefits to the
overall community are maximized.

53



2110-55 -3- April 12,2016

Applicable Zones
As sales from roadside farm stands are already permitted in Rural Zones, the emphasis on
which zones might be appropriate for “Pocket Farm Market” use are those that would bring the
product closest to the market and have the least impact on existing commercial properties in
respect to parking. The actual use of space on a parcel appropriately zoned would be subject to
regulations contained in the Zoning Bylaw Amendment and an agreement between the
farmer/market organizer and the property owner/manager.

The zones that may be suitable for “Pocket Farm Market” use include commercial zones and
institutional zones. The rationale is that commercial activities are already permitted in the
commercial zones. Note that office zones have also been included because office parcels are
often in commercial areas but on weekends, depending on the type of office, the parking lots
are often not in use. Similarly, many institutional parcels, such as churches, may want to
connect with their communities by supporting this type of use on a weekday afternoon/early
evening or Saturday morning.

The following zones are proposed to be listed as suitable for “Pocket Farm Markets” use:
0-2, C-2S, C-2LRS, C-3, C-3B, C-3L, C-3LRS, C-4B, C-4BR, C-4C, C-4D, C-4RT, 0-5,
C-5LRS, 0-6, C-6DE, 0-8, C-9, C-13, P-i, P-lA, P-1R, P-lU, P-4, P-4HR, P-4H, P-li, P-12, P
13.

Zoning Bylaw Amendments
Based on the discussion above, the following bylaw amendments were initially proposed:

1. Add a new definition of “Pocket Farm Market”:

“Pocket Farm Market — means a use of land, for the retail or sale of locally grown fruits,
vegetables, cut flowers, plants, and locally processed jams, preserves, and bakery products
from personal vehicles or portable tables within a parking lot or hard surface outdoor area.
Sale of handicrafts, flea market products, and food carts are excluded.”

2. Replace Section 5.23 with an amended Section 5.23

“5.23 Christmas Tree and Pocket Farm Market Sales

Notwithstanding the parking provisions of Section 7.0 of this bylaw;

b) The retail sale of “Pocket Farm Market” products shall be permitted no more than twice
weekly on any parcel zoned 0-2, C-2S, C-2LRS, 0-3, C-3B, C-3L, C-3LRS, C-4B, C
4BR, C-4C, C-4D, C-4RT, 0-5, C-5LRS, C-6, C-6DE, 0-8, 0-9, 0-13, P-i, P-iA, P-1R,
P-i U, P-4, P-4RH, P-4H, P-i 1, P-i 2, P-i 3, between May 1 and October 31 in any
calendar year.”

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DIRECTION

At the Council meeting at which the concept of “Pocket Farm Markets” was initially discussed, it
was agreed to forward the proposed Zoning Bylaw Amendment (as outlined in the previous
section of this report) onto Public Hearing.
Council also requested that additional information be provided as outlined below:

54



2110-55 -4- April 12, 2016

1. The potential impact on the operations of the Police and Fire departments of
holding a “Pocket Farm Market” in the parking lot at the Municipal Hall; and

2. The expansion of the permitted times of year for “Pocket Farm Markets” to
between mid-April and November 30.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Use of the Municipal Hall Parking Lot
During early discussions, concerns were raised as to whether the Municipal Hall parking lot was
appropriate for a “Pocket Farm Market”. Proponents saw the parking lot as a good location
because of its proximity to the Uptown Major “Centre” and access to the Lochside Trail, as well
as the underutilization of the parking lot on weekends.

The initial proposal to amend the Zoning Bylaw to allow “Pocket Farm Markets” did not capture
the Municipal Hall site which is zoned C-4 (Office and Apartment) Zone. Excluding the
Municipal Hall site was due to a concern around potential conflicts between Police and Fire
emergency vehicles and market activities.

Recent discussions with the Fire and Police departments indicate that weekend use of the
Municipal Hall parking lot for a “Pocket Farm Market” would be acceptable and should not cause
a problem for emergency vehicles if the farm market is limited to a defined area (see Figure 1).
The Police have requested that the market be set up in the large flat parking lot behind the
Annex Building which ensures that emergency vehicles entering or leaving the Municipal Hall
parking lot do not conflict with market activities. Parking on the lower level of the Hall site,
adjacent to the Swan Lake Nature Sanctuary, should not be a problem as it is a regular
weekday activity along the exit/entrance route into the parking lot. Fire emergency vehicles
enter/exit onto Vernon Avenue and not through the Municipal Hall parking lot, so there would be
no conflict for them.

Permitting “Pocket Farm Markets” to occur within specified commercial and institutional zones
would require the operators of the markets to meet with the property owners to negotiate
conditions of use, beyond the regulations that would be listed in the Saanich Zoning Bylaw. For
the Municipal Hall, negotiations would take place between the District of Saanich and the
market operators regarding the location and times which a “Pocket Farm Market” would be
allowed to operate.

Given the lack of any major concerns from the Fire and Police departments regarding the effect
of the proposed market on their operations, and the ability to address any potential operational
concerns through negotiations with the market operators, it is recommended that the C-4 Zone
be included as a permitted zone where “Pocket Farm Markets” can occur.

55



2110-55 -5- April 12, 2016

,i.

aanich
Police
D&pt.

Location for Potential
Pocket Farm Market on
Municipal Hall Site

Saanich
Municipal

Hall

I

Saanich
Muriicipál.

:‘; • Anre -

0

25

Figure 1: Location for Potential “Pocket Farm Market” on Municipal Hall Site

56



2110-55 -6- April 12, 2016

Expansion of Permitted Times of Year for “Pocket Farm Markets”
Council also asked staff to explore whether the permitted time of year during which “Pocket
Farm Markets” could operate should be expanded from May to October 31 as initially discussed
with Council, to mid-April to November 30.

The months during which “Pocket Farm Markets” could potentially operate were initially limited
by typical farm production periods in the Capital Region. However, there is a growing interest in
the general community in having “Pocket Farm Markets” operate year round. Victoria’s Moss
Street Market, is an example of a year round market. The Moss Street Market differs from the
proposed “Pocket Farm Market” in that it includes craft vendors and food carts, in addition to
local produce sales.

While interest in holding “Pocket Farm Markets” may be less during non-peak growing months,
expanding the permitted times of year during which a market can operate to April 15 to
November 30, or even to all year around, would provide additional flexibility for market
operators.

Expanding the permitted times of year for operating “Pocket Farm Markets” by four to six
months is anticipated to have some consequences on surrounding land uses. While the
markets would operate under the same regulations and restrictions as other times of year, with
respect to the products sold and the frequency of the markets, the potential number of markets
per year would increase. Staff anticipate that parking, noise, and garbage would be typical
concerns from neighbouring properties.

Given the increased demand for “Pocket Farm Markets”, the ability for year round local food
production in the CRD, and the desire to provide greater flexibility for market operators, it is
recommended that “Pocket Farm Markets” be permitted all year long.

Food Carts, Food Trucks, & Handicrafts
While not part of Council’s request for additional information, given the evolving nature of farm
markets, staff felt a short discussion on the role food carts, food trucks, and handicrafts would
be appropriate at this time.

The initial Zoning Bylaw Amendment proposal included the following definition:

“Pocket Farm Market — means a use of land, for the retail or sale of locally grown
fruits, vegetables, cut flowers, plants, and locally processed jams, preserves, and
bakery products from personal vehicles or portable tables within a parking lot or hard
surface outdoor area.” Sale of handicrafts, flea market products, and food carts
are excluded.”

Food carts and food trucks are becoming more commonplace at farm markets and are typically
well received by the public. While the intent of Saanich’s “Pocket Farm Market” proposal is to
support local farmers to sell their produce directly to residents of Saanich and the CRD, food
carts and food trucks could be a positive component of such an event, if they were limited to an
accessory role. Staff recommend that food carts and food trucks be permitted as accessory or
secondary activities at a “Pocket Farm Market”.

Staff will be bringing forward a separate report on the potential for legalizing food carts and food
trucks in other situations in the near future.

57



2110-55 -7- April 12, 2016

The original Zoning Bylaw Amendment also specifically excluded the sale of handicrafts and
flea market products. In looking at both local and international small scale farm markets, the
sale of handicrafts can also play a valuable role in animating a farmers market and acting as a
drawing card. As with food carts and food trucks, to ensure the focus remains on the sale of
local farm produce, the sale of handicrafts would need to be limited to a secondary role.

A common definition for “handicraft” is:

“A skilled activity in which something is made in a traditional way with the hands
rather than being produced by machines in a factory.”

Staff would still recommend that flea market goods be excluded, and for the purpose of clarity
that mass produced goods (i.e. clothing, kitchen wares) or commercial services and/or their
promotion be specifically added to the exclusion list in the definition.

REVISED ZONING BYLAW AMENDMENT

Based on Council feedback and additional information, the following revised Zoning Bylaw
Amendment is proposed (changes from initial proposal noted by bolded and underlined text)

1. Add a new definition of “Pocket Farm Market”:
“Pocket Farm Market — means a use of land, for the retail or sale of locally grown fruits,
vegetables, cut flowers, plants, and locally processed jams, preserves, and bakery products
from personal vehicles or portable tables within a parking lot or hard suriace outdoor area.”
Food carts, food trucks and the sale of handicrafts are permitted as a
secondary/accessory activity to the sale of local farm produce. The sale of flea
market products. mass produced goods, and commercial services and/or their
promotion, are excluded.”

2. Replace Section 5.23 with an amended Section 5.23

“5.23 Christmas Tree and Pocket Farm Market Sales

Notwithstanding the parking provisions of Section 7.0 of this bylaw;

b) The retail sale of “Pocket Farm Market” products shall be permitted no more than twice
weekly on any parcel zoned C-2, C-2S, C-2LRS, C-3, C-3B, C-3L, C-3LRS, C-4, C-4B,
C-4BR, C-4C, C-4D, C-4RT, C-5, C-5LRS, C-6, C-6DE, C-8, C-9, C-13, P-i, P-lA, P
1R, P-lU, P-4, P-4RH, P-4H, P-li, P-12, and P-13.” (The time period has been
removed to allow for markets all year).

58



2110-55 -8- April 12, 2016

RECOMMENDATION

That Council amend Zoning Bylaw 8200 to include a new definition of “Pocket Farm Market”;
and that Section 5.23 be amended to include “Pocket Farm Market Sales”.

Report prepared by:

Report prepared & reviewed by: —______________________

Report reviewed by -[

HS/CS/ads
G:\PLANN1NG\Farmers Market\REPORT Pocket Farm Market_APR 11 201 6.docx

cc: Paul Thorkelsson, CAO

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS:

Paul Tho Isso

Cameron Scott, Manager of Community Planning

SPia ‘ooJjyQzdanskI, Director of Planning

59



60


	Agenda
	Item C1 UVic Confined Space Rescue Svc Agmt p.3
	Item C2 Regional Tower Crane Rescue Svc Agmt p.15
	Item C3 Victoria Regional Transit Commission p.30
	Item D1 ACH Awards Pgm p.32 
	C/W #1 Miniature Goats p.36
	C/W #2 Pocket Farm Markets p.52



